ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 16, 2011
8:02 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair
Senat or Joe Thomas, Co-Chair
Senator Bettye Davis, Vice Chair
Senator Hollis French

Senator Gary Stevens

MEMBERS ABSENT

Al'l nmenbers present

COW TTEE CALENDAR

PRESENTATI ON:  FETAL ALCOHOL SPECTRUM DI SORDERS | N SCHOOL
- HEARD

PREVI QUS COWMM TTEE ACTI ON

No previous action to record

W TNESS REG STER

Cl NDY ANDERSON, Director

Speci al Education

Anchorage School District

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Gave an introduction on the inpacts Fetal

Al cohol Spectrum Disorders (FASD) has on children and adults
nati onwi de and in Alaska and answered questions regarding FASD
i n school s.

MARY ANDREWS, parent of child with FASD

Bet hel , Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Shared her son's story and enphasized the
i nportance of early intervention

MONI CA LEI NBERGER, FASD Behavi or Speci al i st

Lower Kuskokwi m School District
Kuskokwi m Al aska

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -1- March 16, 2011



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Shared her perspective, as a teacher, in
working with students who have FASD and the inportance of early
i ntervention.

M NDY CASQN, Student

Uni versity of Al aska Anchorage (UAA)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Shared her experiences as a young adult wth
FASD.

JEANNE CERHARDT- CYRUS, parent of child with FASD

Ki ana, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Shared her daughter's story and enphasized
the inmportance of early intervention.

DEB EVENSEN, Consult ant

FASD Education Statew de

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answered questions from the comittee
regarding the inpacts of FASD and the systematic changes that
need to be put into place regarding prevention and educati on.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

8:02: 58 AM

COCHAIR KEVIN MEYER called the Senate Education Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:02 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators French, Stevens, Co-Chair Thomas and Co-
Chair Meyer. Senator Davis arrived shortly thereafter.

Presentation: Fetal Al cohol Spectrum Di sorders in School

8:03: 25 AM

CO- CHAI R MEYER announced the order of business would be to hear
a presentation on fetal alcohol spectrum disorders (FASD) by the
Al aska FASD Part ner shi p.

8:05: 26 AM

CI NDY ANDERSON, Director, Special Education, Anchorage School
District, said FASD includes a range of disabilities caused when
a developing fetus is exposed to alcohol. It is preventable.
FASD is a lifelong disability and can manifest in a variety of
ways, including: learning disabilities, nenory problens, poor
j udgnent , i mpul sivity, attention deficit, physi cal i ssues,
cognitive inpairnments, and severe enotional disturbance. She
noted that Al aska has the highest per capita rate of FASD in the
United States.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 2- March 16, 2011



She said that she wanted to give a few parents the opportunity
to share their stories with the commttee.

CO- CHAIR MEYER noted that Conmm ssioner Hanley has joined the
commttee for the day's hearing.

8:07: 20 AM
MARY ANDREWS, parent of a child with FASD, said she is here
today wth her son, Terrell, who 1is diagnosed wth a

neur obehavi oral disorder. She explained that she knew all al ong
that he would have problenms because of prenatal exposure to
al cohol. She said that she is here today to share his story and
ask for the conmttee's support in FASD.

She said that as an infant Terrell cried constantly. As a young
child Terrell could not comunicate well and would cry out of
frustration. In school he was behind in many ways and by 4th and
5th grade he was no |onger bringing homework honme. She expl ai ned
that during this tinme she began attending FASD neetings where
she found support from other parents and received training.
Terrell is doing nmuch Dbetter through this support and
nmedi cat i on. She explained that while Terrell does not
communicate the way that she w shes he would through early
intervention she has the gained the knowl edge to help himin his
every day chal |l enges.

8:10: 06 AM

MONI CA LEI NBERGER, FASD Behavior Specialist, Lower Kuskokw m
School District, said her district is fortunate because many
districts in Alaska are not able to have a special education
teacher focused on this population of individuals. Prenatal
exposure to alcohol affects every individual differently and it

is life-long. This neans that, wthin the classroom it is
i mportant to change the classroom so that they can succeed. She
explained that in the classroom students like Terrell <can't

mul titask, they have to do one task at a tine. She enphasized
that as a special education teacher she wants children with FASD
to be able to point out what is upsetting them It is inportant
to change the environnent around these students in order to help
t hem succeed.

8:14:17 AM

M NDY CASON, Student, University of Al aska Anchorage (UAA), said
her story begins in elementary school when she was diagnosed
with learning disabilities. She noted that she knew that
sonmet hing nore was going on. She explained that, as a child, she

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 3- March 16, 2011



was seen as defiant and with a lack of drive. As a teenager she
opted not to receive special education services because it was
difficult for her to be taken out of regular classes and be
singled out by her peers. She struggled with the high school
qualifying exam and had to take the SATs eight tinmes before
receiving the mnimm scores to attend college. Wile taking a
break from school she worked in prevention and intervention with
Vol unteers of Anerica. During a training class on FASD, she said
that "every bullet point spoke to ne." She explained that her
not her had substance abuse issues but it was not until she was
21-years-old that she realized she had FASD. She expl ained that
within those 21 vyears she damaged relationships, made poor
decisions and did not follow directions because she did not
understand the directions. She returned to school in 2009 and
will graduate on May 1, 2011 with a bachelor's degree. She has
decided to apply for a master's degree at the school of
psychology at UAA  She stressed the inportance of early
intervention for children with FASD. She explained that if she
had received nore screening when she was screened for |earning
disabilities as a young child, she could have received nore
support and been taught the coping skills that she had to teach
hersel f. These skills took her many years to acquire.

CO- CHAI R MEYER asked what group she was last in Juneau with
MS5. CASEN replied with the Youth Sunmt.

8:19: 06 AM

JEANNE GERHARDT- CYRUS, parent of a child with FASD, said she and
her husband are parents to nultiple children with prenatal
exposure to alcohol. She said that there is a difference between
supported success and independent failure for both students and
teachers. She explained that for her daughter [Ivory, her
experience in primary school was of building frustration,
di m ni shed communi cation and a decreased ability to cope. She
expl ai ned that upon her daughter's renoval from school she was
taken away from the social aspects of |ife. She said when they
have supportive success it is conpletely different. She said
t hat FASD needs to be addressed in special educati on
classifications, l|like autism She added that now her daughter
has increased conmuni cati on and accomodati ons, w th individuals
who are trained to aid in these accommodations. She stressed
that teachers need to be trained in FASD and that they need to
be supportive. She noted that it is not just about educationa
success, it is about lifelong success. Early intervention would
have been hel pful for all of her children.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -4- March 16, 2011



She read a statement from her daughter: "Hello nmy nane is lvory
Domi nica Gerhardt-Cyrus. | never had a challenge before, but ny
teachers are very nice to ne."

8:24:26 AM

M5. ANDERSON agreed that the types of services provided to
students, provides success. She explained that the Anchorage
School District (ASD) hired a consultant, Deb Evensen, who
provides training and support to ASD staff on FASD. Ms. Evensen
does "talking head training" along with denpbnstration teaching
and nentorships which allows teachers to practice the skills
that they have |earned. Next year they will continue giving as
much support as possible. These "talking head" trainings are
also filmed so that other teachers can access the trainings and
hel p support their students. She noted that ASD has al so assured
that within their curriculum for high school students that there
is an enphasis on teaching the effects of alcohol consunption
during pregnancy. She said the hope is that students wll nmake
better decisions as they nove into adul thood and parenthood. ASD
also has a STEP [Student Educator and Parents] Center |ibrary
section on FASD, which parents, students, teachers, and
community nenbers can check out. She stressed that there is a
need to continue that |evel of support and build capacity within
ASD. She noted that the district has also been training
i ndi vidual schools for inclusive practices. Wth the right
supports in academics and behaviors, all <children can be
successful in a general classroom

She stressed that the skills gained by teachers to support
children wth FASD support all students. The ability to
differentiate instruction and provide accomodations to build
success is critical to increasing test scores, neeting AYP
[ Adequate Yearly Progress], and teaching skills to students for
success in life.

8:27:57 AM

DEB EVENSEN, FASD Education Consultant, said for the last two
years she has been involved as a consultant with ASD. She
explained that there are two inportant things that are needed in
order to increase the capacity to deal wth FASD. First,
everyone needs to understand FASD. She noted that nost students
with FASD are not in special education at this tine. Second, the
education system needs to understand FASD. She stressed that it
is inmportant to tweak the system from the inside so that
students can be helped in each grade |level to becone successfu

in their adult life. She said that if there is any way for the
legislature to help get a FASD expert in each district this

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 5- March 16, 2011



woul d change the education system in the state. Al aska has the
ability to take the next step forward and teach the system how
to work with individuals with this disability. She noted that
i ndividuals with FASD are out of sync chronologically with their
peers. She said that throughout Al aska they are |osing many of
t hese students by m ddl e school .

8:32:35 AM

M5. ANDERSON concluded that those with FASD have a higher
i kelihood of depr essi on, subst ance abuse, per pet uati ng
probl ens, serving tine in jail, becom ng honel ess, or suicide.

She noted that early diagnosis allows famlies, schools, and
comunities to wor k t oget her and addr ess preventi on,
i ntervention, and ongoi ng support.

CO CHAIR THOVAS asked if it is generally accepted that the
earlier a child' s diagnosis the better the outcone.

M5. ANDERSON replied yes. She said that being able to diagnose
early and wunderstand what the disability is is extrenely
important. Currently, in order to diagnose a student there are
14 different categories of special education identification,
FASD is not one of them She explained that trying to find the
right services for these students can be very difficult. Having
the correct diagnosis early on is extrenely helpful in teaching
themthe skills that will allow themto be successful.

CO- CHAIR THOVAS noted that she is discussing children who are
already in school. He asked if it is possible to nmake this
di agnosi s right after birth.

M5. ANDERSON answered that there are assessnents that can be
done early on. She explained that one of the best ways to
identify FASD is for a famly to disclose that a child has been
exposed to alcohol prenatally. ASD does provide preschool
services for ages 3-5 where students can be provided additiona
support and services. She noted that often what happens is
students with FASD are not identified right away, do not receive
services in preschool, and step into kindergarten wthout any
previ ous hel p.

CO CHAIR THOVAS said 16.2 percent of urine sanples obtained from
pregnant wonen in |labor in Al aska tested positive for drugs or
al cohol. He asked if there is an issue with this information
bei ng passed al ong or the parents counseled at that point.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 6- March 16, 2011



MR. ANDERSON replied that this information would not be
di sclosed to anyone outside of the hospital's nedical staff
unl ess a parent agreed.

8:36: 57 AM

MS. EVENSEN answered that right now there are parents that may
not have or want to get the nedical diagnosis for FASD. She
explained that nmany parents do not want to deal wth this
because they do not believe it will nake a difference and wl|
shane them She said that, as an educational system they are
handi capped when they don't know what the problem is. She
stressed that when the system is ready to accept this issue,
parents will bring themthis information.

CO CHAIR THOVAS commented that this is after the situation has
al ready occurred. He asked what the system can do to prevent the
si tuation.

M5. EVENSEN replied that the individuals who are the nost at-
risk of having children with FASD are typically people wth
uni dentified FASD. She expl ained that hel pi ng people who al ready
have FASD is the best step towards prevention.

8:39: 23 AM
M5. CERHARDT-CYRUS said "without intervention we have no
prevention." She explained that individuals who are not

conpleting their education are nore likely to becone parents at
a younger age and use substances to cope with the chronic
frustration. She added that once things are going well for a
child with FASD it is inportant that these supports are not
taken away. FASD is a lifelong disability.

M5. EVENSEN noted that adult life is the nobst difficult for
individuals with this disability.

CO CHAIR MEYER said he wunderstands it nust be difficult for
adults with FASD. He added that for children with FASD it nust
be even nore difficult, because kids are so hard on each other.
He asked how schools deal with children being pulled out of the
cl assroom and | abel ed as different.

8.:42:11 AM

MS. LEINBERGER said that there are unobtrusive ways for children
to receive these services, which can also help their peers as
well. She explained that it depends on each child and where
their deficits are. For exanple, if a child is far bel ow readi ng
than their same-age peers then they nmay get sone pull-out

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -7- March 16, 2011



services specifically for reading. She stressed that it 1is
inmportant to nold the environnment around the child rather than
segregating them even further by pulling them out of the
classroomall the tine.

CO CHAIR MEYER noted that this takes a very talented teacher. He
asked Ms. Cason for confirnmation that she did not know she was
i npacted by FAS [fetal alcohol syndrone] until she was 21 years
ol d.

M5. CASON replied yes.

CO- CHAIR MEYER asked whether knowing this in junior high or
el ementary school woul d have been beneficial.

M5. CASON replied that it would have been beneficial because she
knew that there was sonething else going on outside of |earning
disabilities. She explained, for instance, that she had all the
steps to learn how to read, but her brain could not process
those steps. She continued that as an adult this has been
difficult as well. Wen it conmes to basic job skills she has to
ask a lot of questions in order to understand the job. Because
of this she has been fired froma nunber of jobs. She noted that
if she discloses that she has a disability she often will not
receive a phone call regarding that job. She said "it's kind of
a catch-22 for ne." She noted in regards to relationships as an
adult, her disability is noticeable. It is not sonmething that
goes away. She explained that she struggles wth comrunication
and under standi ng the boundari es of other individuals.

8:46: 30 AM
CO CHAI R MEYER asked how i ndi vidual s are di agnosed for FASD.

MS. EVENSEN answered that it is a nedical diagnosis by a doctor
who has been trained specifically for this. It is a very
speci fic diagnosis that is precise and scientifically sound. She
said that "we know how to diagnose it and know what they need

We just don't know howto do it as a system"”

CO- CHAI R MEYER asked if these doctors are available in Al aska.

M5. CGERHARDT-CYRUS replied that there are diagnostic teanms in
Al aska. She noted that North Slope, Northwest Arctic, and Bering
Straits do not have diagnostic teans available. The Al aska FASD
Partnership is currently looking into this. She clarified that
FAS is a nedical diagnosis and the other diagnoses cone under

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 8- March 16, 2011



the unbrella of FASD. FAS include the |owest anmount of people
t hat are inpact ed.

M5. EVENSEN noted that all of these diagnoses involve the brain
and are pernmanent.

M5. GERHARDT- CYRUS added that school success is not always about
academ c functioning. She explained that the mgjority of
individuals wth prenatal exposure to alcohol do not experience
mental retardation or cognitive inpairnent. However, it is often
t hrough processing and behavioral issues that brings children to
light in the classroom Once this is recognized teachers and
aides can provide the right support and teach children the
necessary skills for the classroom the workforce, and
rel ati onshi ps.

8:50:19 AM
SENATOR STEVENS asked what the legislature can do to help
prevent FASD and educate children before they becone parents.

M5. ANDERSON replied that included in the docunment packet is
some priorities for the Al aska FASD Partnership. This includes
assisting famlies who have FASD, nmamintaining the famly unit,
early intervention, testing, and assessnents.

MS. LEI NBERGER answered that alcohol is such a huge problem in
the state of Alaska. She said that starting with intervention
with the birth nothers in order to prevent future children who
are prenatally exposed to alcohol is an inportant start. She
stressed that it is inportant to continue giving support and
education to nothers who can then advocate for their children
She continued that it is inportant to support teachers. She
recommended that when a teacher renews their teaching |license a
mandatory class on FASD be included. Finally, it is inportant to
have a teacher in every district who is avail able year-round and
can provide training on FASD

M5. EVENSEN added that through her experiences working in Canada
with adults living with FASD she realized that she wanted to
return to Alaska and help schools recogni ze FASD. She stressed
that the system needs to recognize FASD in adults and support
t hese individuals as well.

8:57: 05 AM

M5. ANDREWS said "we don't know what they go through and how
they feel." She explained that her step son did not finish high
school and could not hold a job. Through the poor choices that

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 9- March 16, 2011



he nade his life ended at a very young age. She stressed that
early intervention can really help.

CO- CHAIR MEYER said he appreciates the testifiers for educating
the conmttee on FASD. He recognized how challenging it is for
the teachers, the schools systens, and the students. He asked
about the Slingerland program taught at the Baxter Elenentary
School in Anchorage and if this tool helps children |learn how to
read.

M5. ANDERSON replied yes. She added that ASD s special education
program has purchased "The Language Program" which is one of
the top reading prograns across the nation. She said there are
mul ti ple options for teaching and they are |ooking at research-
based curriculumthat will allow all students to be successful.

9:01: 26 AM

There being no further business to cone before the commttee,
Co- Chair Meyer adjourned the neeting at 9:01 a.m

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -10- March 16, 2011



